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OVQ (S) Energy Services Limited -

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

The Directors present their Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Business overview

) The OVO (S) Energy Services Gioup ("the Group) supplies domestic energy and energy-related services in‘the
UK. The Group was previously part of the SSE Plc group of companies until 15 January 2020 when the Group
was acquired by OVO Energy Limited an indirect subsidiary of OVO Group Limited ("OVO").

The acquisition has combined the scale of the Group with OVO's dlgital capabilities and enables millionis more
customers to experience the latest technology to decarbonise their homes and receive a market leading customer -
experience. Even before the completion of the acquisition the Group had already begun its journey towards a

. more digitally-led, customer-centric organisation. The acquisition by OVO has and will continue to remove

complexities and duplication by combining SSE Energy Services and OVO’s home services business, metering,
commercial efforts and support functions. It will continue to digitise legacy SSE processes and move the
business onto a common set of systems to meet the demands of an mcieasmgly digital consumer and a more
agile workforce. .

Completing this acquismon means that OVO now serves around 14.25% of the markef; making OVO the UKs
third largest energy provider. - .

'OVO grew out of the belief that there was a better way to sell energy, starting with the ambition to make energy
cheaper, greéner and simpler and with the commitment to make every decision as if the customer was in the
room.. With this focus on transparency and fairriess, OVO challenged the status quo and set the standard for new
entrants to the market

" OVO has consnstently ranked among the UK’s most loved energy brands, even at a time when public trust in the
industry. has been historically low. The energy market is going through profound change with companies of all
sizes struggling to adapt. Increased competition, digitisation, the growth of big data, and changing consumer
demands are eroding traditional business models. The past few. years have seen OVO develop from a top-rated =
energy retailer into a group of companies delivering innovative energy services underpinned by smart
technology

We are now part of a wider collection. of companies w1th a smgle vision: to power human progress with clean,
affordable energy for everyone. :

The consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out on page 16. The Group loss for
the year after taxation amounted to £379m (2019: £170m). While revenue and gross profit for the year remained -
broadly in line with prior year, the Group incurred exceptional administrative expenses of £473m (2019: £63m). -
Following the ‘acquisition of the Group by OVO, an exercise was undertaken to review the fair value of the
tangible and intangible assets, resulting in an impairment charge of £399m. In addition, an onerous contract of
£61m was recognised during the year. The balance of £13m exceptional costs relate to costs incurred due to the
restructuring of the Group. The consolidated statement of financial position at 31 March 2020 is set out on page
17 and shows consolidatéd net assets of £13 Im (2019: consolidated net labilities of£75 Im).

Page 2 .



i

OVO (S) Energy Services Limited
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (conﬁnuéd)

Key financial and performance indicators
The Group's key financial and other performance indicators during the Year were as follows:

o Unit. 2020 T 2019
Electricity supplied to average household kWh . ' 3,509 - 3,554‘
Domestic electricity cu_stomei*s (asat3 1 Marc_h) - millions 3.25 ’ 3.46
Gas supplied to average household therms T 427 . 408
Gas domestic supply customers (as at 31 March)  millions . 2' - 2.

AC“rross profit - S - millions ) ’ 539 559
Adjusted EBITDA* L millions - 97 (33)

Cash . - ’ ' millions 3 _ 15

*Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation and exceptional expenses.

vI'ntegration with the OVO Group ‘

OVO Energy Limited aéquired OVO (S) Energy Services Limited and its subsidiaries in .éarly42020 to combine
its-scale with OVQ’s digital capabilities and enable millions more customers to experience the latest technology
to decarbonise their homes while delivering best value to customers: -

Even before the completion of th.eT acquisition, the OVO (S) Energy Services Group had already begun its
journey towards a more digitally-led, customer-centric organisation. .. .

COVID-19

Throughout the pandemic, our priority has been to ensure the safety of our people whilst continuing to support
all of our customers, particularly those that are vulnerable. Our investment in technology and shared platforms
has ensured a high level of connectivity which means we are’ able to move to remote operations with minimal
disruption. -

However, unfortunately COVID-19 will impact our commercial performance in 2020/21,due to some key sales -
channels within the business experiencing significant interruption as a result of the lockdown. The most notable
of these is the impact on our ability to continue the roll-out of smart meters to customers.

: . '
As a result of COVID-19, we also anticipate the need to recognise additional bad debt charges in 2020/21 as the

economic consequences of the pandemlc materlahse with our customers This will be recognised in accordance -
with IFRS 9.
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ovo (S) Energy Services Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Principal risks and uncertamtles : :

The Directors of the Group acknowledge that they have responsibility for the systems of internal control and
risk management and for monitoring their effectiveness. The purposes of these systems are to manage, .rathcr
“than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, to provide reasonable assurance as to the
. quality of management information and to maintain proper control over the income, expenditure, assets and .~ .
liabilities of the Group. No system of control can, however, provide absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Accordingly, the Directors have regard to what controls, in. their judgement, are
appropriate to the Group's businesses, to the materiality of the risks inherent in these busmesses and to the
relative costs and benefits of 1mplementmg specific controls.

“Control is maintained through an organisation structure with clearly defined responsibilities, authority levels and

lines of reporting, the appointment of suitably qualified staff in specialised business areas; and continuing
investment in high quality information systems. These controls are subject to pCI‘IOdIC review as to their
lmplementatlon and contmued suitability.

* . The main risks which OVO (S) Energy Services Limited and its subsidiaries could face are as follows:

« Competition impacting on volumes sold;

« Exposure to volatility in wholesalé electricity and gas prlces
» Payment default from trade debtors;

* Interest rates, inflation and llquldlty,

* Economic and Government regulation and

.- Weather condltlons varying SIgmﬁcantly from normal seasonal trends.
\

The Board reviews and agrees policies for addressing each of these risks. There is relatively little exposure to
foreign currency risk as the United Kingdom is the Group's main area of operation. If wholesale power and gas
is contracted .in foreign currency or indexed to foreign currency, it is policy to hedge all material purchases
through the use of foreign currency swaps and forward rate contracts. There is always a risk of payment default
from trade debtors and comprehensive credit vetting and effective payment terms are exercised for all
significant customer accounts. Good payment discipline is achieved in the domestic market by use of direct
debit budget schemes. There is also the risk of mechanical or process failure in the Group's operations. Any
material failure in the Group's licensed operations in electricity and gas supply is particularly significant.
Operating risk is addressed through the Company's focus on seeking operational excellence and on maintaining
" the highest standards of safety and quallty The Group is exposed to economic regulation and government
‘policy. There are management structures in place to mitigate, influence and respond to such developments, and
to engage with the Industry Regulator, government ministers and officials, and other key bodies.

" There are_established procedures in place for regular budgeting and reporting of financial information. The
Group's performance is reviewed by the OVO Group Board and the OVO Group Executive Committee. Reports
include variance analysis and projected forecasts of the year compared to approved budgets and non-financial
performance indicators. There are Group policies in place covering a wide range.of issues and risks such as
financial authorisations, IT procedures, health, safety and environmental risks, crisis management, and a policy
on ethical principles. The effectiveness of the Company's systems of internal control is monitored by the internal
audit department which distributes reports and, where appropriate, actipn plans to senior managers, Directors
and the external auditors.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon R>epoirting Framework Regulations
OVO (S) Energy Services Limited (formerly SSE Energy Services Group 'Limjted) is 4subject to the Streamlined
Energy and Carbon Reporting Framework Regulations (SECR). We therefore report our 2019/20 energy

consumption and greenhouse gas emissions figures, an mtensxty ratio, and information relating to our energy
and greenhouse gas emissions reductlon actions.
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| OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

‘ Sfrategic Repdrt for;the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (conﬁnued) :

. 'Energy consumption figures A

Total Scope 2 emisSions (Market-based)

Area K ‘ " Energy source Unit - 2019/20 energy consumption
» Natural gas kWh . 4,157,103 .
Building energy consumption Diesel ~ kWh 656,171
- Electricity ~ kWh. 8,985,970 -
: _ Diesel . kWh- 36,757,673
Fleet energy consumption , - :
: - . Petrol - kWh 68,789
Diesel ( kWh 1,728,770
" Business travel energy consumption. "Petrol kWh - 981,910
' . Unknown "~ kWh 582,166
Greenhouse gas emissions figures
Emissions scope  Area Emissions Unit 2019720 gr:ee.nhouse
, source gas emissions
o , i Natural gas Tonnes CO2e 764
Building energy consumption . : .
Diesel Tonnes CO2e 166
Scope 1 emissions ugitive gmissions R4.10A Tonnes CO2e ' -14
Fleet energy consumption  Diesel Tonnes CO2e 8,845
' Petrol Tonnes CO2 16
Total Scope 1 emissions Tonnes CO2e 9,805
 Electricity Tonnes CO2e © 2047
o . (Location-based) .
Building energy consumption o ’
. o Electricity ’ To co2 186
Scope 2 emissions - (Market-based) - onnes ¢ 4
Total Scope 2 emissions (Location-based) Tonnes CO2e 2,247
Tonnes CO2e

186
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ende{d’31 March 2020 (continued)

- 2019/20 greenhouse -

Emissions scope ' Aréa Unit gas emissions
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions ' ‘ ‘ ’
(Locatlons-based) Tonnes CO2e 12,052

4 Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions . '
(Market-based) , . Tonnes CO2e 9,992 .
Scope 1 and Scope
. 2 emissions _ L
: Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions intensity Tonnes
relative to revenue = (tCO2e/£m) CO2e/fm 33
(Location-based) : : )
" Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions intens'ity Tonnes . o
relative to revenue (tCO2e/£m) CO2e/fm o 2.8
(Market-based) ‘ . . . '
Emissions scope  Area : L, Emissions . . Unit 2019720 green house
. o source gas emissions
Diesel Tonnes CO2e 441
Business . travel CNer8Y petrol Tonnes CO2e . - 237

Scope 3 emissions consumption ,

' Unknown Tonnes CO2e. ‘ 144
Total Scope 3 emissions Tonnes CO2e ) . 822
Revenue . SSE Energy Services Group revenue - £m 3,633

Energy and greenhouse gas emissions reduction actions

OVO Group Ltd acquired OVO (S) Energy Sefvices Ltd and it's subsidiaries (formerly SSE Energy Services
Group Limited) in January.2020. Since the acquisition, our primary focus has been gathering robust energy and
greenhouse gas emissions data in order-to understand the environmental impact of the OVOQ (S) Energy Services
Group's operations. We also recalculated our 2018 baseline data and started updating our energy and
science-based carbon reduction targets to include the OVO (S) Energy Services Group's operations. Now that
we have a view of the OVO (S) Energy Services Group's energy and greenhouse gas emissions performance, we
w111 start workmg on a roadmap for 1mprovement .

Reporting methodology
- Our reporting approach is aligned with the WRI GHG Reporting Protocol Corporate Standard. The Basis of

Preparation document outlining the reporting methodology in detail can be found here:
www.ovo.com/basis-of-preparation/.
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OVO (S) Energy Seryiees L{imited

.Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (c}o,ntinued)

Pian Zero

Plan Zero is the OVO Group's response to the climate crisis, based on a thorough assessment not only of our

own carbon footprint but also the broader impacts of all our products and services. Our goal is to drive progress
" to zero- carbon living. Plan Zero sets out how we will achieve this goal by 2030. The UK government has
" recognised the urgency of this situation. It has set out-a greenhouse gas emissions target of net-zero by 2050, -

making it the world’s first major economy to commit to real progress. But how we get there is up to us. At
“OVO, we want to move even faster to create a world without carbon.

For full details, please visit https://ovo.cg)m'/planzero/.

S172 Statement

As noted above, OVO (S) Enelgy Services Limited was previously part of the SSE Plc group of companies until
15 January 2020 when the Gloup was acqulred by ovo Energy Limited, an indirect sub51d1a1y of OVO Group
Limited. ~

As a result ‘for the period 1 April 2019 through 15 January 2020 the reportmg 1equ|rements under Section 172
of the UK Companies Act 2006 are satisfied through the disclosures made by SSE Plc in their Annual Report
(available on Compames House website).

Following the acqulsltlon of the Gxoup by OVO Energy Limited, the 1equuements have been met by the OVO
. Group Limited Directors.

.OVO Group lelted identifies their customers, people, the planet, the government and regulators, their
suppliers and their communities as key stakeholders, who are at the heart of OVO Group Limited’s strategy aiid
business model. Engagement with these stakeholders allows an understandmg of the evolvmg needs and informs
strategic decision making. . :

In line with the re'quireménts of the UK Companies Act 2006, we provide a high-level summary of how the
Directors engaged with our stakeholders and had regard to their interests when setting strategy and taklng '
decisions subsequent to acquumg the business.

-
Our customers :
‘Communications to customers are designed to moblllse a commumty around our strategic objective, Plan Zero,
to drive progress to zero carbon living and to support all of our customers in reducing their ‘individual carbon
footprint by 50% by 2030. The Directors receive direct updates from each customer facing business and
regularly discusses customer performance, NetPromate Scores and feedback.

Governments and regulators
The Directors engage regularly with key stakeholders within the UK Government devolved administrations and
Ofgem. They also share platforms at conferences and roundtables, discussing and obtaining feedback on
regulatory, policy and political priorities. OVO Group also have a dedicated Policy and Public Affairs team who
regularly update the Directors on policy developments and coordinate a regular engagement programme.

Qur suppliers’ . C
Building trusted partnerships with our suppliers is important in enablmg us to provide the best products at the

best prices for our customers. Suppliers are engaged with our strategic initiative, Plan Zero, by adhering to our
Supplier Code of Conduct and we have plansto further engage suppliers by including sustainability assessments
as part of the procurement process and ensuring sustainability criteria forms a minimum. part of weighted.
assessment scoring when new suppliers are being selected.
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Strate\:gicheport for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

.~

S172 Statement (contmued)

The Dnectms recogmse that having robuqt governance stiuctures in place is vital to decision- mal(mg The
Directors spend time listening to and understanding the view of its key stakeholders When discussing matters at
Boald meetings, these vnews form an mtegral part of decision-making.

‘AII matters which under OVO’s govemance arrangemehts are reserved for decision by the Directors are
presented at OVO Group Board ‘meetings. Directors are briefed on any potential impacts and. risks for the
Group’s customers, people, the planet the government and regulators their suppllers and thelr commumhes and'
how they are to be managed. . ‘

Apprb\{ed by the Board on 31 March 2021 and signed on'its behalf by:

. Vincent Casey
Director
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'OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 |

- The Directors present then report and the audited consolidated financial statements. consolidated -financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 :

Change of company name
The Company was previously known as SSE Energy Services Group lelted On 16 January 2020 the
Company changed its hame to OVO (S) Energy Services Limited. :

Directors' of the Group '
The Directors, who held office durmg the year, and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as
follows: .

Vincent Casey (appointed 15 January 2020)
Adrian Letts (appointed 16 January 2020)
Peter Lawns (resigned 15 January 2020)
.. Glenn Barber (appomted 24 June 2019 and resrgned 15 January 2020)
Katie Bickerstaffe (appomted 24 June 2019 and 1esrgned 15 January 2020)
~Gordon Boyd (appomted 24 June 2019 and re51gned 23 December 2019)
' Anthony Cocker (appointed 24 June 2019 and resigned 15 January 2020)
Stephen Fitzpatrick (appointed 16 January 2020 and resigned 18 January 2021)
" Stephen Forbes (resigned 15 January 2020) .
Anthony Keeling (resigned 15 January 2021) .
* Paul Phillips-Davies (appointed 24 June 2019 and resigned 15 January 2020)
~ The following directors were appointed after the year end: .
" Raman Bhatia (appointed 18 January 2021)
- William Castell (appointed 18 January 2021)

Prmcnpal activities
The principal activity of the Group is the supply of domestlc energy and energy- related serv1ces in the UK

Dividends
The Directors do not propose a dividend for the year (2019 ‘no d|v1dends proposed) .

Financial instruments - : '

-Financial risk management objectives and ‘policies have been established making use of financial instruments
for the purpose of managing the exposure of the company to price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
risk. See Note 25 of the ﬁnanmal statements, for further information.

: )

Political and charitable donations
The Group did not make any political or charitable donations during the year (2019: £nil).

Stakeholder engagement
Details of the Group's actions taken durlng the financial year with regards to stakeholder engagement can be
found within the Section 172 Statement included in the Strategic Report.
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Dlrectors Report for the Year.Ended 31 March 2020 (contmued)

Employment of disabled persons-

One of the Group's core values is treatmg people falrly, giving equal opportunities to all employees and.
' appllcants The ‘Group ensures all employees get the same chances for training, development and career

progression depending on. their performance, including any disabled employees. If -an employee becomes

disabled whilst in employment, the Group will make every effort to give the employee suitable responsibilities

with reasonable adjustments in their current role, in line with the Equality Act 2010. Where this is not possible,
. the Group will try to ﬁnd the employee another role within OVO and provide additional training (as necessary).

Employee involvement

The Group is actively encouraging employee involvement throughout the organisation. The Gloup holds regular
company wide briefings where the latest information is shared, mcludmg financial and economic factors that
affect the performance of the Group. Employee performance and development is reviewed on a quarterly basis
and ensured it is in line with the overall Group's objectives. The Group's employee forum and social committee
is chaired by its employces for its employees. OVO Group Ltd additionally has a share scheme for-employees.

Future developments .
The Directors believe that the Group remains” well posmoned in the market place. Furthel mformatlon is
included in the Strategic Report. .

Going concern

2020 is a transformative year for the Group. The Directors have performed a detailed assessment of the Group's
. "ability to continue as a going concern, and do not believe there are any material uncertainties to disclose in
relation to the Group's ability to cohtinue as a going concern for the foreseeable future. See note .1 to the
financial statement for further details. '

Post balance sheet events

COVID-19 :

Our investment in technology and shared platforms has ensured a high level of connectivity which means we are
able to move to remote operations with minimal disruption. However, unfortunately COVID-19 has impacted
our commercial performance in 2020/21, due to some key sales channels within the business experiencing
significant interruption as a result of the lockdown.

As a result of COVID- 19, we have also recognised additional bad debt charges in 2020/21, in accordance with
the requirements of IFRS 9,.as the economic consequences of the pandemic have. materialised with our
customers. .

" Other post balance sheet events
In May 2020, the OVO Group announced a phase of restructuring to align the e‘ustmg OVO Retail business and
the acquired SSE businesses operatlonally With respect to our subsidiary OVO (S) Metering Limited, this
_involved the creation of an OVO Group -Metering division to oversee all metering activity across the OVO
Retail Group. The new Group Metering division was largely created from personnel across OVO (S) Metering
Limited and the OVO equivalent (OVO Field Force Limited) with some additional functlons transferred in from
ovo (S) Energy Services Limited. -

At this tlme, no changes Kave been made to align employee contracts or assets.
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Directors‘ Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued) -

Post balance events (continued)

As part of the restructure, a voluritai’y enhanced redundancy programme (VER) was initiated which has resulted
in the exit of a number of staff from both the OVO and OVO (S) Metering busmesses to right-size the operation
and to operate across all OVO Retail brands. .

- In addition through the same VER programme, OVO (S) Metering Limited is ceasing to. undertake in-housé
. meter reading activity and has moved to a third party arrangement. As a result circa 700 meter reading staff (a
mix of permanent and contract resource) have left the business.

Directors' liabilities

Prior to acquisition by OVO Energy Ltd, the Directors had the benefit of an indemnity provision contained in
SSE Plc's Articles of Association. In addition, the Directors had been granted a qualifying third-party indemnity
provision which was in force until 14 January 2020. The Directors were also covered by SSE Plc's Directors'
and Officers' liability i lnsurance until 14 January 2020. 4 .

From 15 January 2020, on acqu151t10n by OVO Energy, and. to date, the Dlrectors are covered by the OVO
Group Directors' and Officers liability insurance.

Disclosure of information to the auditors :

Each Director has taken steps that they ouaht to have taken as a director i n order to make themselves aware of -
any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information. The -
‘directors conﬁrm that there i is no relevant mformauon that they know of and of which they know the auditors are
unaware.

Appointment of auditors . i

In accordance with Section 489 -of the Companies ~ Act 2006, the Company. confirmed that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been appointed external auditors for the OVO (S) Energy Services Limited
Group for the year ended 31 March 2020, as approved by the Directors. ’

Approved by the Board on 31 March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Vincent Casey

. Director 4
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OVvO (S) Energy-Services Limited
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors acknowledge thelr responsibilities fox pleparmo the Annual Report and the ﬁnanmal statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the-
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with international .accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparmg these fi nancnal statements,
the directors are required to: .

+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistentlj}
* make judgement_s and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;.

"« state ‘whether applicable international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and .

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern ba51s unless it is mapproprlate to plesume that the
company will continue in business.-

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accountmg 1ecords that are sufﬁctent to show and explain the
. group's and the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the group and the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and the company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Approved by the Board on 31 March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

. Vincent Casey
Director
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Independent Audltor s Report to the Members of OoVvO (S) Energy Servnces lelted
(formerly SSE Energy Services Group lelted)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opmlon

In our opmlon OVO ()] Energy Serv1ces lelted s group financial statements and company financial
statements (the “financial statements™):

+  give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company s affalrs as at 31 March 2020 and of
the group’s loss and the group’s and the company’s cash flows for the year then ended; .

« have been properly prepared in accordance with international aeeuunung stdndards in conformlty with the
- requirements ‘of the Companies Act 2006; and’

«  have been prepared in accordance with the 1equ1rements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Consolldated Financial
Statements (the “Annual Report”), which comprise: the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2020; the consolidated income statement, the consolidated and company statements of
cash flows and the consolldated and company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the
notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with. International Standards on Audltmg (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is
sufficient and approprlate to provide a basis for our opinion. :

' Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethlcal requlrements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsnbllltles in accordance with these requirements. e

Conclusmns relating to going ‘concern :
We have nothing to report in respect of the followmo matters in relation to whlch the ISAs (UK) requlre us to
report to you where: .

+ the directors’ use of the going concern bas:s of accountmg in the preparatlon of ‘the financial statements is
not appropriate; or

. the directors have not disclosed in the ﬁnancnal statements any 1dent|ﬁed matenal uncertamtles that may cast
significant doubt about the group’s and company’s ablhty to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
_accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue. . . . . .

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not-a guarantee as to the
group’s and company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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“OVO (S) Energy Services Limited . .

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of OVO (S) Energy Services Limited
(formerly SSE Energy Services Group Limited) (continued)

Reporting on other mformatlon

. The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thercon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit oplmon
or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In_connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or -
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether
there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
If,- based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures requnred
by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included. -

‘Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audlt ISAs (UK)
require us also to report certain opinions and matters as descnbed below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report '

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given-in the Strategic -
Report and Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and
has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understandmg of the group and company and their environment obtamed n the
course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities' for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements .
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Respon51b111t1es the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is’
necessary to enable the preparatlon of financial statements that are free from matenal mlsstatement whether due
to fraud or error. :

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to
cease operations, or.-have no realistic alternatlve but to do so.
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited
Independent Auditor's Report to the Mgmb‘ers,of OVO (S) Enéfgy Services Limited
: (formerly SSE Energy Services Group Limited) (continued)

Responsibilities for the finzincia] statements and the-audit (continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the fi nanc:al statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial Sstatements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audltors “report that includes. our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarartee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it €xists. Misstatements can arise

“from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to ;nﬂuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statcments.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the firiancial statements is located on the FRC’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This desctiption forms part of our auditors’ report. ‘

Use of this report : ‘

This report,-including the opmlons has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We-do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for-any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report

. is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wrltmg

Other requlred reporting

o Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
+  we have not received all thé information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ .adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; ar

« - the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accdunting‘ records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

KE Anrn

Katharine Finn (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP -
Chartered Accountant and Statutory Auditors
Bristol

31 March 2021
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OVO ) Energy Services lelted

Consolldated Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

2020 . 2019

Note " £m £m
Revenue- | S 4 3633 . - 3,604
Cost of sales - - - L (3,094)  (3.044)
Gross profit o o | E - : 539, 559,
Administrative enpenses ' - ‘ . (433) . . (5:56)
Exceptional adm'inist'rative' cxpenscs A l 5. 473) . (63)
Impairment of financial asset - ‘ e o 6D . (39)
Fair value losses on derivatives ' AR 24" . ‘ -(4). (47
Operating loss ' B : o 5 (438) - : | (146)
Finance income : ' - 6 ' 1. E 3
Finance costs . _ : S 6 - (37 (55)
Loss before tax - : . ‘ . a _ (474) (198)
Income tax credit = - o ' 10 9 . 28
Lcss for the year R : ‘ : . : (379) S (170)

The above results were derived from continuing operations.

Total other comprehenswe income
The Group had no other comprehensnve income in the current or prior fi f' nancnal years

‘The notes on pages 24 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Assets

" Non-current assets )
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Intangible assets

" Defined benefit pension asset

Deferred tax assets

Derivative financial assets

Current assets
Inventories ‘

Trade and other receivables -
" Cash and cash equivalents’

" Total current assets

Total assets

’

Current liabilities
Trade,and other payables
Lease liability

. Provisions

Derivative financial liabilities

Total current liabilities

-~ Non-current liabilities
- Lease liability

Amounts due to related parties )

Total liabilities
: Net»assetsf(liabilitiés)
Equity

Share capital

Capital contribution reserve
Merger reserve .

~

OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

| * (Registration number: 11046212) ,
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2020

Note

11
12
13
22
10
24

15
16

17

19
20
24

18

21

" Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)
; .o )

"Total equity

The notes on pages 24 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£m £m
16 31 -
48 -
65 423
23 -
105 22
38 23
295 499
1 o
1,167 1,068
13 s
1,181 1,084
1,476 1,583
(1,158) S (1,312)
(15) o-
(62) )
(78) (59)
(1,313) (1,376)
' (32) -
- (958)
(32) (958)
(1,345) (2,334)
131 (751)
609 -
21 -
(585) (585)
86 (166)
131 (751)

—



' OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

(Reglstratlon number' 11046212)
Consolldated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2020 (contmued)

~

The financial statements on pages 16 to 64 were apptoved by the Board ot 31 March 202V and signed on its .
“behalf by: .

Vincent Casey
Director -

' The notes on pages 24 to 64 form an integral part of these ﬁnanCIal statements. -~ ~
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OVvVO (S) Energy Services Limite(_i

(Registration number: 11046212) -
Company Statement of Financial Pos1t10n as at 31 March 2020

31 March. 31 March
2020 2019

"Note ‘ £m £m
Assets L

Non-current assets ‘
Investments in subsidiaries , _ 14 493 - 441
Amounts due froim related parties - ’ . - 11

493 452
Current assets . ,
.Trade and other receivables : : 16 168 1,288
Cash and cash equivalents . 17 10 : -
Total current agsets . o . ) - 179 * 1,288
Total assets ' ' S - 672 1,740
Current liabilities ‘ | "
Trade and other payables A 18 . 3) “(1,315)
an-cﬁl;rent liabilities . ‘ ) .
Amounts due to related parties ) ' - 18 - (964)
Total liabilities : o _ ' 3) (2,279)
Net assets/(liabilities) ' = - 669 (539)
Equity L '

- Share capital o ; o 21 ' 609 -
Capital contribution reserve T ' . 21 - . .-
Retained eammgs/(accumulated losses)- C __— 39 (539)
Total equlty o S 669 _(539)

No income statement is presented for the Company as permltted by section 408 of the Compames Act 2006 The
Company made a loss for the ﬁnanc1al year of £31m (2019 - loss of £539m).

The financial statements ‘on pages 16 to 64 were approved by the Board on 31 March 2021 and signed on its
behalf by: -

Vincent Casey
- Director

- The notes on pages 24 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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OVO (S)- Energy Services Limited

‘Consolidated Statemént of Changes:in Equity for the Year Ended 31 March 2020,

)

At 1 April 2018
Loss for the year
Credit in respect of employee share awards -

At 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2019
Loss for the year )
Transfer of pension asset from parent company (net of tax)
New share capital subscribed ) ¢
Capital reduction ’

' Capital contribution reserve movements
Credit in respect of employee share awards

At 31.March 2020

The notes on pages 24 to 64 form ai

~ Capital
contribution Merger ~ (Accumulated .

" Share capital reserve reserves losses) Total equity

£m £m - £m £m £m

- - (585) - . (585)

- - - (170) - (170)

- - - 4 4

- - (585) - (166) (751)

' Capital (Accumulated i
contribution Merger losses)/retained -

Share capital reserve reserves _earnings Total equity
C fm £m £m £m : £m

- (585) - C L (166) " (751)
N - - (379 (379) .
- < - 19 19 -

1,218 - - - 1,218

(609) - - 609" -

- 21 - - 21

- - - 3 3

609 21 (5835) 86 131

Page 20
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ovVOo (S) Energy Services Limitéd'

v

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Capital

contribution . (Accumulated -
~ Share capital _reserve losses) Total equity
'  £m £m - £m - £m
At 1 April2018 C S S -
Loss for the year ‘ - - ©(539) (539)
* Total comprehensive income ) - ’ - (539) _(539)
At 31 March 2019 . oo (539) - (539)
7 ’ '
i Capital - ) (Accumdlated,
: contribution losses)/retained
Share capital reserve earnings Total equity
: : ‘ £m " £m . £m £m
At | April 2019 - ’ - a - - (539) (539)
Loss for the year : . - ~ - 31). (31)
* Total comprehensive income : - - o - . (3D '(31)
New share capital subscribed < 1218 : ' - A - 1,218
Capital reduction : (609) - - 609 _ -
Capital contribution reserve - ' ' - ' :
movements _ : e L= 21- - 21

At 31 March 2020 S . 609 21 397 . 669

"The notes on pages 24 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statemen'ts. .
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited .
Consolidated Statement of Cash FloWs for the Year Ended 31 March 2020
o 2020 . 2019
\ Note £m - '  £m
Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year - R : ' (379) ©(170)
Adjustments to cash flows from non—cash items ' .

‘Deprematlon, amortisation and impairment. - 461 ' , 109
. Finance income’ : 6 : (1) . )
Finance costs : ) 6 : 37 - 55
Share based payment uansacnons : o B .03 4
Tncome tax expense . ' o ' R 95) . . (28)
‘ 4 ' 26 (33)
" Working capital adjustments ' ' . , o ‘ )
Fair value losses/(gains) on derivatives : . 4 R 4 . 47
" Increase in trade and other receivables : ' - 16 ' (87) (63)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables . s (125) 150
Increase/(decrease) in provisions ‘ 20 - 57 . -
Cash gen‘erated from operations . ' __— (125) | . 101
Income taxes (paid)/received - : . 10 . (12) -7
Net cash flow from operating activities - : ‘ S (137) - 108
Cash flows from investing activities . '
Interest received : 6 . 1 3
Acqmsmons ofproperty plant and equ1pment . , )y - - (6)
Acqulsmon of intangible assets : 13 an - {13)
Net cash flows from investing activities L - L)) - (116)

“Cash flows from ﬁnancmg actlvmes . . ST
Interest paid N 6 - RN CY) (59)

Proceeds.ﬁom intercompany financing ' - ) . 1260 . .-
Payments to finance lease creditors . , . ’ - an -
'Ne‘t cash flows from 'ﬁnlancing activities ‘ : ) | _ 212 . - (55).
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents o o ) | (63)
Cash and cash ;quivélents atl April o - 15. | 78

: ‘. Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March ) : 13 15

The proceeds from intercompany financing comprise the net cash receipt as part of transactions that also
invoved non. cash movements through the issue of shares of £1,218m and the settlement of intercompany loans
of £958m. )

The notes on pages 24 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited ,

<

Coinpany Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year o . ,
' Adjustménts'to c;iéh flows from non-cash items
Impairment - S
" 'Finance income

Finance costs -
. Income tax éxpense

. WOrking capital adjustments

-Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables

(Decrease)/inciease in trade and other payables
Net cash flow from operating activities

~Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Investment in subsidiaries

Net cash flows from investing activities
/

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid S
Proceeds from intercompany financing

Net cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Caé._h and cash equivalents at 31 March

. . °2020 2019
Note Lo £m £m
3D (539) .

_ - 493

6 - (1)
6 .33 51
o _ ) @
16. 1,133 (1,287)
18 ©(1,298) 1,338
' (165) 51
6 - |
14 ' (52) -
(52) B

6 - (33) (52)
© 260 -

227 © 1 (52)

10 -

10 -

The notes on pages 24 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financiéi Statements for the Yea_r Ended 31 March 2020

1 General mformatlon

OVO (S) Energy Servrces lelted (”Thc Company") is a puvate company limited by shares and 1nc01porated
domiciled and registered in the United Kingdom. The reglsteled number is l 1046212 and the reglsteled office is
. 1 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6ED.

These ﬁnancnal statements were authonsed for issue by the Board on 3l March 2021.

2 Accounting policies .

Statement of compliance

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with mtematlonal accountmg standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 ("IFRS") and the appllcab]e ]egal reqmrements of
the Companies Act 2006:

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates

The punmpal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
"These policies have been cons1stently applied to all the years presented, unless otherw1se stated. |

Basis of preparation ’

The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with mtematlonal accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 ("IFRS") and the applicable legal requirements of
the Compames Act 2006 and interpretations as issued by the [FRS Interpletatlons Committee (IFRS IC)

The ﬁnancnal statements have been prepared under the hlstoncal cost conventlon except for derivative financial
instruments that-have been measured at fair value.. .

. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accountmg'
estimates. It also requires- management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or-complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are discloséd in Note 3.

Ttems included in the financial statements are measured using " the currency of the primary economic
_environment in which the entity operates (‘the functionah currency’). The financial statements are presented in
‘Pounds Sterling’ (£), which is the Group’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

_The financial statements are rounded to the nearest million (£m) except when otherwise indicated.

" Page 24



OVvO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

2 Accounting policies:(continued)

' Going concern
The Group made a loss of £379m for the year ended 31 March 2020 and had closing net assets of £1 31m.

The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
as a result .of continued trading with OVO Group companies. The Directors have additionally received

confirmation that OVO Group Limited. intend to support the Group for at least 12 months from the date of

approval of these ﬁnancral statements.

The ability of OVO Group Limited to provide this support has been considered within the OVO Gioup Limited
financial statements, available on request from the registered office showing in notel, where the OVO Group
Limited Directors concluded that the Group has sufﬁc:ent liquidity to continue as a going concern. This
assessment has been updated as at 31 March 2021.

Under the base case, and the severe downside scenarios considered, the Group has sufficient liquidity to
continue as a going concern and is compliant with all financial covenants throughout 2020 and 2021.

Accordingly, the Directors have areasonable expectation that the Group has adequate liquidity, and resources to .

continue operating for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements, and
therefore the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Having considered these matters the Directors do not believe there are any mateual uncertainties to disclose in
relatlontothe Company's ablhty to continue as a going concern.

Basis of consohdatlon
The Group financial statements comprise ‘the consohdated fi nancral statements of the Company and rts
subsidiary undertakings as at 31 March 2020. .

" The Company and its subsididries have previously been part of the SSE plc group and the Company has
previously taken the exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements under Section 400 of the
Companies Act 2006. For the year ended 31 March 2020, this exemption is no longer available and therefore the
Company has prepared consolidated financial statements for the first time.

The Group was formed on | April 2018 as part of a group reconstruction undertaken by SSE plc. As this

involved the business combination of -entities under common control, the Company has elected not to apply
acquisition accounting under IFRS 3 and has elected to apply predecessor accounting principles. The assets and
liabilities of the subsidiaries acquired from SSE plc have been recognised at their previous book values and no
new goodwill has been recognised. The difference between the aggregate value of assets and liabilities acquired
and the value of shares issued by the Company as conmderatul)n has been recognised in a merger reserve.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control is aehieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. -

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries which are related parties, are eliminated in full. :

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the pohcres
adopted by the Group. :

No income statement is presented for the Company as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The
Company made a loss for the year of £31m (2019: £539m).
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ovo (S) Energy Servnces Limited

Notes to the Fmanclal Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (contmued)

2 Accounting‘policies (continued)

Chnnges in accounting policy

New standards, interpretations and amendments effective !

The following have been apphed for the first time from.1 April 2019 and have had an effect on the financial
statements:

IFRS 1 6 Leases
The. Group had to change its accountmg pohcues as a result of adoptmg IFRS 16. The Group has adopted 1FRS
16 Leases retrospectively from 1 April 2019, but has not restated comparatlves for the 2019 reporting period, as
permitted under the specific transition provisions in the standard.” The reclassifications and the adjustments :
arising from the new leasmo rules are therefore recognlsed in the opening balance sheet on 1 April 2019,

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group 1ecogmsed lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been

_classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of TAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were. measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments discounted using the. lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of |
April 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 April
2019 was 7%. .

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the followmg ‘practical expedlents permntted by the
standard:

. applymg a single discount rate to a portfoho of leases with reasonably similar characterlstlcs '

« accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease teim of less than 12 months as at 1 April 2019 as
short-term leases )

« excluding initial direct costs for the measurement . of the right-of-use asset.at the date of initial apphcatwn and -
* using hmdsnght in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the
lease. :

The associated nght—of use assets were measured on a modified retrospectlve basis as if the new rules had
always been-applied.
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued). . : o o L :
IFRS 16 Leases (continued)
Reconciliation of the impact of adoption: .

~ Group Company
A N : - o £m £m
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 March 2019 R ' - -
Discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate . o - -
(Less): Short;tel‘m leases not recognised as a libility' ' o E - .
Add/(less): Contracts reassessed as lease contracts C . .(16) -

Add/(less) Adjustmerits as a result of a different treatment of extension and
" termination options . ‘

’

_ Lease liability recognised as at 1 April 2019 . _ , (] 6) v -

" Group 'Co'n'lpanyv

Of which are: . - o A : o . £m £m

Current lease liabilities o - o @) -

‘Non-current lease liabilities 3 '_ ' 12 -
(16) -

Group‘ ' Company

Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1 Aprii 2019: : £m £m -

Right-of-use assets - : B ) 16 : -
Lease liability L I O 16) -
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued) |

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Other new accounting standards and amendments

The Group has applled the following standards and amendments for the ﬁrst time for their annual reportmg
period commencmg 1 April 2019: » .

* Prepayment Features with Negatnve Compensation - Amendments to IFRS 9

* Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments to IAS 28
« Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle

« Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement.- Amendments to IAS. 19

« Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Incomc Tax Treatments.'

None of these other standards, mtelpretatlons and amendments effective for the ﬁrst time from 1 April 2019
have had a material effect on the financial statements »

New standards, mterpretatlons and amendments not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published.that are not mandatory for 31 March
2020 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to have
a material lmpact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future.transactions.

Revenue recognition ) - .
Recognition

The Group earns the majority. of - 1ts revenue from the supply of electric and- gas, which comprises sales to
. domestic end-user customers based on actual electric and gas consumption including an estimate of the value-of
electric and gas supplied to customers between the date of the last meter reading and the year end. Revenue is
recognised "over time" consistent with the delivery of electricity and gas to the customer, as we consider ‘the
receipt and consumption of the benefits of the electrlclty and gas to be simultaneous. Further information is
included in Note 3.

Revenue is measured on the applicable customer tariff rate and after deductlon of discounts for direct deblts
paperless blllmg, or-government schemes such as the "Warm Home Dlscount"

The prmmples in IFRS 15 are applied to revenue recognition. crlteua using the following 5 step model

1. Identlfy the contracts with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction prlce

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance o_bligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies. its performance obligations -
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

i Note's.'.to the Financial Statements for thé‘ Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

T ransacnon price

In detenmmmg the transaction price, the Group considers the effects of varlable consideration, the existence of
.S|gmﬁcant financing components, non-cash con51de1atlon, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

(i) Variable consideration

If the consnderanon in a contract includes a variable amount, revenue is only recogmsed in an amount at which a
signiticant reversal is improbable i in the future. :

(i) Consndelatlon payable to a customer

If the contract contains consideration payable to a-customer, the con51de1atlon payable is accounted f01 as a
reductlon of the transaction pnce :
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OvoO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Fmancnal Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (contmued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue i‘ecognition (continued)

" Contract assets and recezvables

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services provided to the customer. If the
Group provides goods or services-to a customer before the customer pays consideration .or before payment is
due, a contract asset, accrued income,’ 1s recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

A receivable- represents the Group’s nght to an amount of consideration that is uncond1t10na1 (ie., only the'.
passage of time is requlred before payment of the consideration is due). .
Contract Iiabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to provide goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before

. the Group provides goods or services to the customer, a contract liability' is recognised when the payment is

made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract llabllltles, deferred income, ‘are recognised as
revenue when the Group perfonms under the contract. -

Net basis of measurement of contract balances

Contract asset and confract liability positions are determmed for each contract on a net basis. This is because the
rights and obligations within each conitract are considered inter-dependent. Where two contracts are with the
same or related entities, an assessment is made of whether contract assets a.nd liabilities are mter-dependent and
if so, contract balances are reported net. .

Capitalisation of costs to obtam or fulfil a contract

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are recognised as an asset if certain criteria are met. The Group
incurs broker commissions for customers who have signed-up through broker sites. The Group has elected to

" apply the optional practical expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the Group to immediately
. expense customer acquisition costs because the amortisation period of the asset that the Group otherwise would

have used is one year or less.

Exceptional items -

- Exceptional items are those charges or credits that are considered unusual by nature and/or scale and of such

significance that separate disclosure is required for the fmancnal statements to be properly understood.

Classification of charges or credits as exceptional items will generally be non-recurring, although exceptional - '
expenses may impact the same financial statement line over time.

Finance i income and costs policy

Financing expense comprises interest payable on loans and is recognised in profit or loss usmg the effectlve
interest method. Financing income comprlses interest receivable on funds invested and on loans to group -
undertakings. :

Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest

method. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement on the date the. entity’s. nght to receive
payments is established. Foreign cunency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.
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3 70) S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Fmancnal Statements for the. Year Ended 31 March- 2020 (contmued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits

The Group operates a flexible benefit scheme for qualifying employees whereby in addmon to their salaly, those
employees are invited to select certain benefits with a value up to 4% of their base pay. All costs related to the
scheme are expensed in the income statement in the year which services are rendered by employees. One of the
available benefits is payment to a defined contribution pension plan. This is a post-employment benefit plan
under.which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and ‘will have no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further amounts. The Group has enrolled in the automatic pensnon scheme since acquisition
by OVO Energy Limited.

A liability is recoghised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plané
if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution pensmn obligation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contnbutlons are paid into a separate entity and
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund doesnot hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

- For defined contribution plans contributions are paid into pubhcly or privately administered pension insurance
plans on'a mandatory or contractual basis. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. If contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recogmsed as an
asset. ‘

Defined benefit pension obligation A
Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, -
usually-dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. :

The asset recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the fair
value of plan assets minus the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date. The defiried.
benefit obligation is measured using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
" obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future payments by reference to market yields at the
reporting date on high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be
paid, and that have terms to maturity approxnmatmg to the terms of the related pensmn liability. ’

Actuarial gains and losses are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss..

Tax

The tax expense for the perlod comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised i in profit or loss, except that
a change attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehenswe income is also
_recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates. and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable

income. .
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2 Ac‘éountihg policies (continued)

Deferred tax is provided © on temporary differences between the carrying-amounts of assets and liabilities for -
_ financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences
are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwxll the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect

. neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating to

investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying _
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or suhstantively enacted at the balance sheet datc.

A deferred tax asset is 4reeognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Property, plant and equlpment ,
Property, plant.and equipment is stated in the statement of financial posmon at cost, less any. subsequent

accumulated deprecnatlon and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of ‘propeny, plant and equipment includes directly attributable incremental costs incurred in their -

acquisition and installation.

Deprec:atlon

* Depreciation is charged so as to write off the .cost of assets other than land and properties under construction

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

-Asset class o o ‘ Depreciation method and rate

Fixtures, fittings and equlpment : o 41010 years straight line
Motor vehicles . ‘ 4 to 10 years straight line

Intangible assets
Development assets and software

" Software assets include the coéts of developing and installing product§ for use within the business. Software is

amortised once the development of the software is complete and has been implemented. The useful life of the
asset is assessed on the basis of the nature of the asset and an expected useful life is applied accordmgly The
amortisation period is as follows:

Amortisation
Amortisation is provided on mtanglble assets so as to write off the cost, less any estimated resndual value, over
their expected useful economic life as follows:

“ Asset-class . ) ’ . Amortisation method and rate

Other intangible assets o ' ' 3 years straight line -
IT software and internélly developéd software costs - 3 years straight line
Trade names : A ) ; 10 years straight line
Contractual customer relationships o , 10 years straight line
. Engineer network ) , © 10 years straight line
Investments

The Company only policy is that investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost, less any lmpalrment
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Inventories - i
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determmed usmg the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method :

The cost~of finished goods and work in progress comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour
costs and those overheads that -have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. At each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment. If inventory is impaired, the carrying
amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell; the impairment loss is recognised
‘immediately in proﬁt or loss.

Trade recelvables
Trade receivables are predominantly amounts due from customers for the sale of electrncrty, gas and other
services performed in the ordinary course of the Group’s business. If collection is expected in one year or less

(or in the normal operating cycle of the busmess if longer) they are classified as current assets. [f not, they are -

presented as.non-current assets.

Trade recelvables do not carry any -interest and are held- at transaction price less an approprlate impairment
recognised where the loss is probable. The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which .uses a lifetime expected credit loss allowance for all trade recervables and contract assets.
Further detail on this model and application within these accounts can be found within the Crmcal accountmg
‘estimates note :

Cash and cash equivalents :

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid .
.investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an 1n31gn1ﬁcant risk of .
‘changes in value.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
~.or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities. .

Trade payables are recogmsed initially at the transaction puce and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method

" Provisions
~ Provisions are recogmsed when the group has a present oblrgatlon (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
.event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obllgatlon and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obllgatlon }
N L . .
Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the .
reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material - :
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Leases N
The below pohcy has been apphed in 2020 followmg the adopt:on of IFRS 16 as noted above

" In the previous year, the company only recognised lease asséts and lease liabilities in.relation to leases that were
classified as ‘finance leases’ under IAS 17 Leases. Leases in which substaintially all the risks and rewards of .
ownership are retained by the lessor were classified as 'opérating leases'. Payments made under operating leases
were charged to ploﬁt or’loss-on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Definition

A lease is a contract, or a part of a contr: act that conveys the right to use an asset-or a physwally distinct part of
an asset ("the underlying asset") for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Further, the contract must
convey the right to the Group to control the asset or a physically distinct portion thereof. A contract is deemed to
convey the right to control the underlying asset if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the right to:.

« Obtain substantially all thé economic benefits from the ﬁse of the underlying asset, and, ’
* Direct the use of the underlying asset (eg direct how and for what purpose the asset is used).

Inltlal recognition and measurement .
The Group initially recognises a lease liability for the obhgatlon to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset
for the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term. '

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The .
lease payments include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise price (where payment is reasonably
certain), expected amount of residual value guarantees, termination option penalties (where payment is
considered reasonably certain) and variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments,
lease incentives received, the Group’s initial direct costs (e.g., commissions) and an estimate of restoration,
removal and dismantling costs.

..
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Subsequent measurement
After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability by

(a) Increasing the carrying amount to reﬂect interest on the 1ease liability;

(by Reducmg the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(c) Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease. modlﬁcatlons or to reflect revised in
“substance fixed lease payments or on'the occurrence of other spemﬁc events.

Interest on the lease Aliability in each period during the lease term is the amount that produces a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. Interest charges are presented separately as’
non-operating /included in finance cost in the income statement, unless the costs are included in the carrying
amount of another asset applymg other applicable standards. Variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of the lease liability, are included in operatmg expenses in the period in Wthh the event or ™~
condition that triggers them arises.

The related right-of-use asset is accounted for using the Cost model in IAS 16 and depreclated and char ged in
accordance with the depreciation requlrements of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment ‘as disclosed in the
accounting policy for Property, Plant and Equipment. Adjustments are made to the carrying value of the right of -
use asset where the lease liability is re-measured in accordance with the above. Right of use assets are tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of assets as disclosed in the accounting policy in
1mpa1rment :

Lease modifications o : - )

If a lease is modified, the modified contract is evaluated to determine whéther it is or contains a lease. If a lease
continues to exist, the lease modification will result in either a separate lease or a change’ in the accounting for -
the existing lease. '

- The modiﬁcation is accounted for as a separate lease if both:

(a) The modification increases: the scope of the lease by adding the rlght to use one or more underlymg assets;
and :
(b) The consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the’
paltlculal contract.

If both of these conditions are met, the lease modification resnlts in two separate leases; the unmodified original
lease and a separate lease. The Group then accounts for these in line with the accounting policy for new leases..

If either of the conditions are not met, the modiﬁed lease is not accounted .for as a separate lease and the
_consideration is allocated to the contract and the lease liability is re-measured using the Iease term of the .
modified lease and the discount rate as determined at the effective date of the modification.

For a modification that fully or partially decreases the scope of the lease (e.g., reduces the square footage of
leased space), IFRS 16 requires a lessee to decrease the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect
partial or full termination of the lease. Any dlfference between those adjustments is recognised in profit or loss
- at the effective date of the modification.

For all other lease modifications which are not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the lessee to
recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the.lease liability as an adjustment to the correspondlng
r|ght-of use asset w1thout affecting profit or loss.
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‘2 Accounting policies (continued)

Short term and low value leases :
The Group has made an accounting policy election, by class of underlying asset not to recognise lease assets
and lease liabihties for leases Wlth a lease term of 12 months or less (i.e., short-term leases).

The Group has made an- accountmg pOlle election on a lease by- lease basis, not to recognise lease assets on
leases for which the underlying ‘asset is of low value. :

.

'Lease payments on short term and low value leases are accounted, for on a straight line bases over the term of
the lease or other systematic basis if considered more appropriate. Shont term and low value lease payments are
mcluded in opeiatmg expenses in the income statements. :

Financial instruments C e

Initial recogmtlon
Financial assets and financial liabilities. comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial

" position, although excluding property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets, deferred .

tax assets, prepayments, deferred 'tax liabilities and employee benefits plan.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabtllties in the statement of financial position’ when and
only when, the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the ﬁnanmal instrument.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at' fair value,
representing the proceeds received net of premiums, discounts and transaction costs that are directly attributable
" to the ﬁnancxal liability. , .

All regulai way purchases and salés of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL™) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the financial assets or financial liabilities. All regular way purchases and sales of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are recognised on the settlement date, i.e. the date on which the asset- or liability is
received from-or delivered to the counterparty. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of.
financial assets that require delivery within the t1me frame generally establlshed by regulation or convention in
the market place. .

" Subsequent to 1n1t1al measurement financial assets and ﬁnancml liabilities are measured at either amortised cost
or fair value. :

- ) : Page 36

B

e



OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Classification and measurement '
Financial instruments are classified at inception mto one of the following categories, which then determme the
subsequent. measurement methodology:- o .

Financial assets are classified into one of the following three categornes -
- financial assets at amortised cost;
- financial assets at fair value through other comprehenswe income (FVTOCI); or
- financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL).

.Financial liabilities are classified .into one of the following two categories:-

- financial liabilities at amortiséd cost; or
- financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL)

The classification and the basis for measurement are subject to the Group’s business model for managing the
_ financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, as detailed below:-

Financial assets at amortlsed cost
A financial asset is measured at amortlsed cost if it meets both of the follownng conditions and is not designated-
as at FVTPL:- ‘

- the assets are held wrthm a busmess model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and .
- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

If either of the above two criteria is not met, the ﬁnancral assets are classified and measured at fair value through
- the proﬁt or loss (FVTPL). . .

Ifa financial asset meets-the amortised.cost criteria, .the Group may choose to designate the financial asset at
FVTPL. Such an election is irrevocable and applicable only if the FVTPL. classification significantly 1educes a
measurement or recognition mconsnstency

Financial- llablhtles at amortised cost
" All financial liabilities, other than those classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, are measured at amortlsed
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss :
Financial liabilities not measured at amortised cost are classified and measured at FVTPL. This classification
includes derivative liabilities. ‘
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2 Accounting policies (continued) S N

Impairment of financial assets’

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for trade receivables and contract assets.

The Group applles the simplified approach available in IFRS 9, which requlres expected lifetime losses to be-
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. : :

In estimating a loss allowance we consider historical- experience and forward-looking informed credit
assessment relating to customer specific trends and conditions alongside other factois such as the current state of
the economy. We consider reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available w1thout undue
cost or effort.

Due to the global ﬁnanma] uncertainty arising from the COVID 19 pandemlc management has cons1dered the
elevated credit risk on trade receivables.. .

Commodity derlvatlves :

Within its regular course of busmess the Group routinely enters into sale and purchase derivative contracts for
commodities such as electricity and gas. Where the contract was entered into and continues to be held for the
_purpose of receipt or dehvery in accordance with the Group’s expected sale, purchase or usage requirements, the
contracts are designated as “own use” contracts and are measured “at cost. These contracts are not within the
scope of IFRS 9.’ '

Derivative commodity contracts which are not designated as own use contracts are accounted for as trading
derivatives and are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value. Where a hedge accounting’ relationship is
designated and is proven to be effective, the changes in fair value will be recognised in accordance with the
rules noted above. There are currently no designated hedge relationships in relation to commodity contracts.

Share capital .

- Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other .
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred
and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis. . -

3 Critical 4accounting judgements-and key sources of estimation uncertainty

" The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported-amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures.
Uncertainty abouttheseassumptions and estimates could.result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount ofassets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The key areas 1nvolvmg estimates and judgements that has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements are explamed below.
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Revenue recognition - energj’ supplied but not yet measured (estimation uncertainty)
Revenue from energy supplied to customers includes an estimate of the value of electricity or gas supplied to
customers between the date of the latest meter reading and the financial year end.

This estimate comprises both. billed revenue (trade recelvables) and unbllled revenue (accrued income) and is

calculated with reference to the tariffs and contractual rates applicable to customers against estimated customer

consumption. Estimated customer consumption takes into account various factors including usage patterns, °
weather trends and notified aggregated volumes Supplied to the customers from national settlements bodies.

A change in the assumptions underpinning the calculation would have an impact on the amount of revenue -
recognised in any given petriod.

This estimate is subject to an internal. validation process which compares calculated unbilled volumes to a
theoretical real-time billing benchmark measure of unbilled volumes with referénce to historical consumption
patterns adjusted for seasonality/weather and aggregated metering data used in industry reconciliation processes.
Unbilled revenue recognised on-the Group Balance Sheet was £640m.

Impairment of trade receivables (estimation uncertainty)

Impairments against trade receivables are recognised where the loss is expected. The Group applies the IFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected credit loss allowance for
all trade receivables and contract assets. For energy customers the impairment is calculated by splitting the
portfolio into segments and The Directors have based their assessment of the level of impairment on collection
rates experienced within each segment to date. The estimatés and assumptions used to determine the level of
provision will continue to be reviewed periodically and could lead to changes in the lmpalrment provision
methodology which would impact the income statement in future years. .
The assumption that future performance of customer debt settlement will be reflective of past performance is the
most significant assumption within the expected credit loss provisioning model. To address this risk, the Group
reviews the provision rates for each segment on a regular basis to ensure they are based on the most up to date -
assumptions and use forward looking information. Due to the financial uncertainty arising from the COVID-19

pandemic, management has considered the elevated credit risk on trade receivables and included an additional

overlay to historic decay curves. The total expected credit loss provision, including the COVID-19 overlay, for

the year ended 31 March 2020 was £34m. In order to test the sensitivity of the impairment of the Group's trade -
receivables balance, the Group has considered the impact of an additional ageing of trade receivables which

requires an extra 0.5% of revenue being provided for. This would lead to an increase in the expected credit loss

provision of £18m in 2020. ' :

Derivative financial instruments (accounting judgement) -
Within its regular course of business, the Group routinely enters into sale and purchase derivative contracts for
- electricity and gas. Where the contract was entered into and continues to be held for the purpose of receipt or
- delivery in accoxdance with the Groups expected sale, purchase or usage requirements, the contracts are
designated as “own use”contracts and are measured at cost.These contracts are not within the scope of IFRSY.
The percentage of contracts that are deemed to meet own-use criteria (approximately 70% in relation to
electricity and approximately 40% in relation to gas) is considered to be an area of accounting judgement that
significantly impacts the level of unrealised gains and losses on derivatives that are recognised in the financial
statements.
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3 - Critical accounting judgements and-key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets (accounting ]udgement and uncertamty) .

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other tempoxaly dlffenences giving rise
to deferred tax assets where the Directors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered, i.e. that future
taxable amounts (e.g. taxable profits) will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. The
carrying amount of the deferred tax assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxablé profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered. The recoverability of deferred tax assets relating to losses is based on forecasts of future
taxable profits which are, by their. nature, uncertain.

The Group prepares medium-term ‘forecasts based on Board-approved budgets. These are used to support,
judgements made in the prepar atlon of the Group’s financial statements including the recognition of defelred tax
assets.

Having assessed the level profits made by the Group since the: year end and forecasts of revenue and costs for
the coming years, the Directors believe it is probable that the Group will generate sustainable profits and
therefore a deferred tax asset has been recognised. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses are expected to
reverse over the next 5 to 7 years :

The Group remains ‘exposed to the risk of changes in law that impact the Group’s ability to carry forward and .

utilise tax attributes recognised as deferred tax assets.

4 Revenue

- The analy515 of the Group's revenue for the year from continuing operatlons is as follows:

2020 2019
oo . , £Em - £m
Sale of gas'and electricity - 3,336 - 3,300
Installation of Smart Meters . . o ' - 186 . 196
Sale of home and emergency. cover- S : o 56 . 57
Voiceline revenue ‘ : E 40 © 40
Broadband revenue N ' 15 . 11°
) 3,633 3,604
All the revenue reported in the year is sold within the UK.
5 Operating loss
Arrived at after charging: N A
' 2020 2019
. . £m £m
Depreciation expense - o N 10 : 12
Depreciation on.right of use assets ’ ‘ : 11 -
Amortisation expense ' ] _ 42 ) 38
Impairment loss : ' 399 58
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5 Operating loss (continued)

\

Exceptional- ndmlmstratwc expenses - '

Total excepnonal costs of £473m were recogmsed in the year. Followmg the acqulsltlon of the Group by OVO,
an exercise was undertaken to review the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets. We have reassessed
UELs for system assets that will ultlmately ‘be retired and replaced with OVO systems and as a result we'
recognised an impairment charge of £399m. In addition, £13m exceptional costs were recognised in relation to
the costs that were incurred due to the restructuring of the Group. An onerous contract was also identified during
the ycar, which the Group has provided for, which makes up the remaining balance. of £61m recogmsed in
exceptional costs for the year: .

" Prior year exceptional costs of £63m consisted of £58mv impairment relating to discontinued marketing and data

management software assets and £5m costs incurred in the transfer -and mtegratlon of the GB domestic
electricity supply business from SSE Eneroy Supply Limited to the Group.

6 Finance income and finance costs,

2020 2019
£m - " £m
Finance income - | : , _ ' B
Other finance income - =~ . ’ S 1 3
Finance costs ‘ : ) '
Interest on borrowings . . ' : ' ' 37) (55)
7 Staff costs B ’
Group
. ) \ | R
- The aggregate payroll costs'(including directors' remuneration) were as follows: '
' ' ' - ‘ "2020 12019
S . _ o £m. £fm
Wages and salaries ' _ ‘ . . 1227 i . 247
Social security costs _ - ‘ _ B 21 .23
Other pension costs ' : _ h o 30 .32
Share-based payment expenses ' A o 3 4

281 305
The aggregate payroll costs included in the Company accdurits during the yea’r was £nil (2019 - £nil).

“The monthly average number of pelsons employed by the Group (including Duectors) during- the year; analysed
by category was as follows :

. 2020 2019
: o No. - - No.
Administration and support ‘ : . ' 7,419 8,504 -
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7  Staff costs (continued)

The Company did not have any employees in the current or prior financial year.

3

8 Directors' remuneration

The Group Directors' remuneration for the year was as follows:

Remuneration .

2020

£m
1.7

2019°
£m
1

During the year the number.of Directors who were receiving benefits and share incentives was as follows:

~ Received or were entitled to receive shares under long term incentive

schemes

In respect of the highest paid Director:

Remuneration

9 Auditors' remuneration

Audit of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (contmued)

10 Income tax cr_edit

Tax credited.in the income statement

2020 2019
£m £m-
Curreni taxation o _ ‘ A
UK corporation tax o ' o - - , 8
~ UK corporation tax adjustment to-prior periods S (8) ‘ -
®) 8
Deferred taxation ‘ . .
Arising from originatiori and reversal of temp01a1y dlffelences o . (84) (40)
Arising from changes in tax rates dnd laws o ' (3) . 4
Total deferred taxation : . (87) ‘ (36)
~ Tax credit'in the income statement, : : 99) (2%)

The tax on loss before tax for the year is higher than the standard rate of corporatlon tax in the UK (2019 - lower
than the standard rate of corporatlon tax in the UK) of 19% (2019 - 19%)

' The differences are reconciled below: _
2020 © 2019

) A ) \ £m £m
" Loss before tax S - ' R GIL) (199)
Corporation tax at standard rate of 19% (2019 - 19%) . 0 . (38)
Decrease in current tax from adjustment for prior periods : . ®) . -
Increase fiom effect of expenses not deductible in detexmlmng taxable . : ' . '
profit (tax loss) A , o ] 5 8
Increase from losses carried back 4 - : ) 2 -
Decrease from transfer pricing adjustments ) : . M 2)
Deferred tax (credit)/expense relating to changes in tax rates or laws . _ (3) - : 4
Total tax credit - _ L - \ ©9s) - (28)
\
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10 Income tax credit (continued)

Deferred tax

"~ Group : . ,
Deferred tax assets and habilities

~

2020.

Accelerated tax depreciation
Provisions

Financial asseAts.at. fair value through profit or loss -

Tax losses carry-forwards
Pension benefit obligations

2019

Accelerated tax depreciatio
Provisions :
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Tax losses carry-forwards o
- Pension benefit obligations
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Net deferred

Asset Liat{ility o tax
£m  £m. . £fm
26 - 26
8 - .8
74 - : 74
- (4) G
109 “) 105
Asset

£'m

. 11

; 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continuéd)

10 . Income tax ciedit (continued)

. P . )
Deferred tax movement during the year: . -
' Recognised in .

other ’ At

At1 April Recognised in comprehensive 31 March
2019 income income - 2020
- o £m £m " £m £m
Accelelated tax depreciation Ul .15 ‘ - . 26
Provisions - . 5 R () . - 1
Financial assets at fa1r value through profit : o B :
~ orloss 6 - : 2 - -8
Tax losses carry-forwards . ‘ - B : - - 74
Pension benefit obligations o - - 4 (4)
Net tax assets/(liabilities) : » 22 87 (4) 105
Deferred tax movement during the prior year:
. At
At 1 April' Recognised in 31 March
2018 income . 2019
~ _ . £m £m ©£m
Accelerated ta){ depreciation . . 6) 17 11,
Provisions : : 1 4 ‘5
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss B - (2) 8 _ 6
Tax losses carry-forwards ] - : - -
Pension benefit obligations - ' B - - ' -
Net tax assets/(liabilities) O - 29 22

Deferred tax assets ha\{e been 1'ecogni§ed in respect of carriéd forward losses on the basis that there will be
future profits available against which to offset them. There are no time limits on the recovery of such losses.

Refer to Note 3, critical accounting judgements, for further discussion on the basis for recognition of deferred
tax assets. : '

A change to the main UK -corporation tax rate announced in the Budget on 11 March 2020. was substantively
enacted on 17 March 2020 by a Budget resolution under the provisions of the Provisional Collection of Taxes
Act 1968. The rate effective from 1 April 2020 now remains at 19% rather than the previously enacted reduction -
to 17%. Deferred tax balances are now remeasured to 19% from the previous rate of 17%.

* However, the Spring Budget 2021 announced that the UK corporation tax rate will increase to 25% from 1 April
2023, The net deferred tax asset has been calculated at 19% as this rate has been substantively enacted at the
Balance Sheet date. Had the 25% rate been substantively enacted on or before 31 March 2020 it would have had
the effect of increasing the net deferred tax asset'by £33m!

.
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (contfnued)

11 Property, plant and equipment

Group

Cost or valuation
At | April 2018
Additions

At 31 March 2019
At 1 April 2019 -
Additions
Transfers .

At 31 March 2020

Accumulated depreciation
© At 1 April 2018
“Charge for year
"At 31 March 2019
At | April 2019
" Charge for the year
. Impairment
" At 31 March 2020
Carrying amount

At 31 March 2020
At31 March 2019

Furniture, -
fittings and

Assets:un'der

equipment  Motor vehicles construction "Total
CEfm £m £m £m
‘ 10 138 ; 148
1 3 - 5
1 141 5 sy
11 141 K " 152
n - 1 1.
- 1 (1) -
11 142 ' 153
109 - 109
3 9 - 12
3 118 - 121
-3 118 - 121
2 8 - 10
6 - - 6
11 126 - 137
16 16
8 23 - 31
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (éoﬁtinue'd)_

12 Right of use assets

Gruup . . - :
Property . - Vehicles ‘Total
) £m . &m . £fm
Cost or valuation ‘ )
At 1. April 2019 - Implementation of [FRS' 16 - 16 ‘ - 16
. Additions g L 16 C26 42
At31March2020 -~ . . - 4 3 2 58
Accumulated dépkeciation _ _ . o _ o
At 1 April 2019 ‘ . o .- .- - -
‘Charge for the year : o , 5 -6 10
At 31 March 2020 , : R 6 " 10
Carrying amount ) ‘
At31 March 2020 o o N 20 48

At 31 March 2019 _ v g . . ] ]
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OVO S Energy Serv1ces Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (contmued)

13 Intangible assets

Group \
Software and"
IT
Development - Total
- o £m £m
Cost or valuation T >\ . N ' ' .

. At1 April 2018 S o 425 . 425
Additions ' o - - 113 113
At31March2019 .~ .- o - 538 538
Atl April 2019 - . - A 538 - 538
Additions = . _ ' ' 77 : 77
At31 March 2020 , ' ' . 615 . 615
Accumulated amortisation '_ ; _— : . . ) ' _

At 1 April 2018 - L - S 19 19
. Amortisation charge . I 38 38

Impairment - o A 3 o 58 ‘ 58

At31 March2019 . ' I s 115
© At April 2019 - e , _— ©115 - 1S

Amortisation charge . . . 42 : 42

Impairment W » ’ o ‘ 393 . 393

At 31 March 2020 o o 550 550

Carrying amount. . -

. ’ Vi : . . .
At-3]1 March 2020 - ’ ' 65 65
At 31 March 2019 : . co 423 423

Included within the canymg amount of the Software and IT development costs of £65m are mtanglble assets
unde1 construction of £14m which are not subject to amortisation.

14 Irrvestments in subsidiaries

' Group subsndlarles -
Details of the group subsudlarles as at 31 March 2020 are as follows
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financiél Statements for the Year Enri/éd 31 March 2020 (continued)

14 Investments in subsidiaries (continuedj

Proportion of
ownership interest
- and votmg rights

Name of subsidiary’  Principal activity -Registered office . held
T . : 2020 - 2019
ovo (S) Electncnty Energy Supply (1) See below R 100% '100%
Limited* : ‘ _ . o
OVO (S) Gas Limited* Energy Supply ~ (i) See below : 100% 100%
ovo o) Enérgy Energy related services (i) See below - 100% 100%.
~Solutions Limited* - ‘ .
OoVvO S) Retail Telecommunications (1) See below . 100% . 100%
" Teleoms Limited* . o 4
'OVO  (S) Metering Energy Supply *~ (ii) See below 100% 100%
Limited* : ' , S o ' .
ovOo (S) Home_ Energy related services (i) See below ' 100% 100%

Services Limited*

* indicates direct investment of OVO (S) Energy Services lelted E
(1) Regrstered ofﬁce is 1 River gate, Temple Quay, Bristol, BSl 6ED. .
(11) Reglstered office is Grampian House, 200 Dunkeld Road, Perth Sé¢otland, PH1 3GH

Summary of the company investments .
‘ ' 31 March 31 March

2020 2019
. £m - fm
Investments in subsidiaries - ) . : . 493 441
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. OvVO (S) Eher’gy Services vLimited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (contin’uAed)

14 Investments in.subsidiaries (co‘ntinued)

Subsidiaries

"Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2018

Additions

At 31 March 2019
At 1 April 2019
* Additions

At 31 March 2020

Provision

At 1 April 2018

Provision

At 31 March 2019
At 1 April 2019

" At 31 March 2020

Carrying amount

At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019

15 Inventories -

Finished goods and goods for

resale

/

: Group
31 March 31 March
’ 2020 . 2019

£fm o £m

1 ] |

933
934
934
52

986

493
493 .
493
493

493
441

Company
31 March- .- 31March
2020 . 2019
£m - £m
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~ OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

16 "Trade and other receivables

" Group ' ' Company .

31 March 31 March 31 March - 31 March

2020 2019 C 2020 2019

. . . -£m- . fm’ - £m : © £m

Trade receivables ‘ ’ . 378 - o 370 - -
Receivables from related parties ' 4 16l 1,284
Corporation tax debtor ' Co2 - ' 2 4

) Accrued income ) : ‘ 628 620 : - A R
Prepayments : . 14 .9 i -
Other receivables A 135 69 5 -
1,167 " 1,068 <168 * 1,288

The fair value of those trade and other receivables classified as financial assets are disclosed in the financial
instruments note. ' : T

The Group's exposure to érqdit and market risks, including impairments and allowances for credit losses,
relating to trade and other receivables is disclosed in the financial risk management and impairment note.

17 Cﬁsh and cash equivalents '

. Group. ' : Cdmpany :
31 March 31 March - 31 March 31 March
2020 ) 2019 2020 - 2019
. . £m ‘ £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents _ 13 .15 .10 ) -
"18 Trade and other payables A A
o ' ‘ ' ‘ "Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March ~ 31 March
2020 S 2019 S 2020 2019
. £m ' £m : £m . £m
Amounts falling due within one ‘
year: o _ _
Trade payables ' I 35 . 16 : - o
Accrued expenses o - 231 o 504 - L
. Amounts due to related parties’ 340 235 S : 1,315
Corporation tax payable o R S S . ' 4 _
Other payables : 553 1549 2 -

1,158 . 1,312 ' 3. 1,315
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OVO (S) .Ehergy\Services Limited’

.Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (coht‘i'n'ued).

18 Trade and other payables (continued)

R

' Gfoup - Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2020 2019 2020 2019 .
: £m £m £m £m
Amounts falling due after one
year: ) ) _ : o
Amounts due to related parties - 958 s - 964
| | - 958 -

964

'

The Group's exposure to market and l1qu|d1ty risks, mcludmg maturlty analysis, related to trade and other

payables is disclosed in the financial risk review note.

19 Leases

Group

. Lease liabilities maturity analysis

A maturity analysis of lease liabilities is reported in the table below:

Less than one year
Greater than one year

Total lease liabilities

20 Other provisions

‘ Croup

At 1 April 2019
Additional provisions
Utilised during the year

31 March

31 March

Released during the year

At 31 March 2020

2020 2019
£m £m
(15) -
(32) -
47 -
Onerous Other
contracts - provisions Total
£fm - " £m £m
- s .
61 6 67
“ ) - (6)
- @ @
62

‘57 . 5

An onerous contract of £61m was recognised during the year, of whlch £4m has been utilised in the year Other
"provisions of £5m relate to specific obligations in relation to mdustry mutualisation. :
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ovo (S) Energy Services Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
/
) il Share capital
* Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

" 31 March o - 31 March

2020 4 ' . 2019
No. m - £m No.m . - £m
. Ordinary Share Capltal of£l (2019 - : o , - .
£0) each , - 609 - 609 - . -

New shares allotted
On 12 December 2019 the Company alloted 1 217 270, 359 Ordinary Shares having an'aggregate nominal value
-of £1,217,270,359. They were allotted for an aggregate con51deratlon of £1,217,270,359.

" Reduction of capital

- On 15 January 2020 the company 1educed its capital by 608,770, 361 of its own Ordmary share capltal ata

nominal value of £608,770,361. The Ordinary share capital were reduced for a con51de1at10n of £608,770, 361

and represent 50% of the called up share capital of that class of share. . ,
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‘OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

" 22" Pension and other schemes

Defined benelit pension schemes 4 N . ' o

~

The Group sponsors a funded defined benefit pension plan for.qualifying UK employees — the Ovo Energy
Group of the ESPS. This scheme was established on 14 January 2020 following the acquisition of the company
.by the Ovo group in order to provide retirement benefits for eligible company employees.

The scheme is scctionalised with separate sections for former members of the Southern Electricity Group of the
ESPS and former members’ of the Scottish Hydro-Electric Pension Scheme The assets in each section are
ring-fenced to prov1de benefits sole]y f01 the members of that section. . .

The scheme's asset_s at 31 March 2020 were invested entirely in cash as a.sh'ort-term-investment. The scheme's
_assets. have subsequently been invested in equities,.bonds and other asset classes in line with the investment
strategy set by. the trustees after consulting the company. -

The scheme is administered by an independent trustee, which is legally separate from the company. The trustee
is required by law to act in the interest of all relevant beneficiaries and are responsible for the investment policy
for the assets and the day-to-day administration of the benefits. Under the scheme, employees are entitled to
annual pensions, and in some cases also lump sum benefits, on retirement at age 60 or 63 calculated with
. reference to their pensionable service and final pensionable salary. Benefits are also payable on death and
" following other events such as wnthdrawmg from active service. No othel post-netlrement benefits are provided
to these employees.

Risks

Property market rtsk
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the' scheme's liabilities for accounting
purposes, although this will be partnally offset by an increase in the value of the scheme's bond holdmgs

Inflation risk \

The scheme’s benefit obligations are linked to mﬂatlon and hlgher inflation leads to higher llabllltles (although,
in some cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect against extreme 1nﬂat10n) ’

Life expectancy risk
The majority of the scheme’s obligations are to pfovide beneﬁts for the lifetime of the member, so increases in
- life expectancy will result in an increase in the liabilities.

Rewnczllatton of scheme assets and lzab:lmes to assets and liabilities rewgmsed

The amounts recogmsed in the statement of financial position are as fo]lows

31 March =~ 31 March
2020 K 2019
, -€m . £m

Fair value of scheme assets . . ‘ 78 -
Present value of scheme liabilities =~~~ IS (55) ) -
Defined benefit pension scheme surplus S ' 23 .-
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Ovo (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

22 Pension and other schemes: (continued)

Scheme assets

- Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows: ¢

"Fair value at start of yeaf
Employer contributions.
Net increase in assets from bulk transfers

Fair value at end of year -

. Actial return on scheme's assets

Actual return on scheme assets

Scheme liabilities
'Changes' in the present value of scheme liabilities are as follows:

Present value at start of year
Current service cost . 7
Net increase in liabilities from bulk transfers

Present value at end of year

Amounts recognised in the income statement

Amounts recognised in operating profit
_ Current service cost '

* Amounts recognised in finance income or costs
Recognised in other finance cost

* Total recognised in the income statement
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£m £m

1 -

77 -

78 -

" 31 March 31 March
2020 2019

£m £m

b}

31 March 31 March
2020 2019.

fm £m

(D -

(54) -

(55) -
31 March 31 March
2020 " 2019

£fm £m

1 -




Ovo (S) Enefgy Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued) |
22 Pension and other schemes (continued)

Amounts recognised in equity .
31 March 31 March

2020 2019

. £m - £m

Bulk transfer from parent company - : _ 23 -
Amouiits recognised in equity - . . TN ' I 23 ) I -

Principal actuarial assumptions

- The significant actuarial assumptlons used to determine the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obllgatlon at the
statement of financial position date are as foliows:

i

31 March 31 March'

2020 2019

: . ' : : % %,
..Mortality rate SR , . ' ‘ 125 -
Discount rate S A : ' 170 ) - -

" Future salary increases 4 ’ . l , : ©250 - Coo
Future pension increases ' _ ' 2.60 S

23 Fair value measurement

The following tables provide an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to. initial
recognition at fair value, categonsed into elther level 1, 2 or 3 based on the deglee to which thé fair value is .
observable. .

* Level | fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted market prices for 1dent1cal assets or
liabilities. . :

.

"< Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted ptices within level 1 th'at are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

« Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include mputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market data.

’
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited -

Notes to the Financial Statemients for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)l

23 Fair value measurement (continued)

Assets measured at fair value

2019

Total . S , 38 23

. 2020 o ‘ :
: Date of .- Level 2 Total
. _ . . valuation £m £m
- Energy derivatives. : ' .31 March 2020 38 38.
Assets measured at fair value
Date of Level 2 Total
. valuation £m £m
. Energy derivatives o ‘ © 31 March 2019 23 23
Liﬁbilities-’measured at fair value
2020 s . _
' Date of- Level 2 * Total’
valuation £m £m
Energy derivatives - 31 March 2020 (78) (78)
Liabilities. measured at fair value
2019 ) '
Date of Level 2 Total
: . . valuation £m fm
Energy derivatives ] 31 March 2019 (59) (59)
24 Financial instruments
Group
Financial assets
" Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivativés held for trade
Carrying value -Fair value -
31March  31March  31March. 31 March
2020 2019 2020 2019
£m - £m - £m £m
Derivative financial assets ~ 38 C23 38 .23
38

23
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Fmanclal Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (contmued)

24 Financial instruments (continued)
Valuation methods and assumptions
Fair values for energy derivatives have been determined with reference to closing markef pric'es The fair values

are stated- at a specific date and may be different from the amounts which will actually be paid or 1ece|ved on .
settlement of the mstluments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Carrying value, . . »IFair value
o : o 31 March ' 31 March - . 31 March 31 March
~ . ’ i ) 2020 2019 T 72020 2019
S ' ' £m - &m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents - o 13 . 15 : 13 © 15
Trade and other receivables 1,167 . 1,068 ° 1,167 1,068
' - 1,180 - 1,083 . 1,180 1,083

o

Valuation methods and assumptions

' -Certain assets have been classified and carried at amortlsed cost on inception in line wnth IERS 9 criteria. The
. carrying value of these assets are approx1mate]y equlvalent to fair value due to short-term maturity.

Financial liabilities o,

" Derivative financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss held for trading

Carrying value . ) Fair value -
. S : 31 March 31 March = 31 March. 31 March
: ) ’ 2020 ) 2019 2020 2019
' £m £m  £m : £m
Derivati\‘/e‘ financial liabilities . ' A(78) : (59 . (78) - . (59)
(78) (59) (78 . (59)
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L 0OVO(S) En'ergy Services Limited

‘Notes to the Einancia] Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

24 Financial instruments (continued)

Valuation methods and assumptions

Fair values for energy derivatives have been determined with reference to closing market prices. The fair value
are stated at a specific date and may be different from the amounts which will actually be paid or received on
settlement of the instruments. : )

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Carrying value " Fair ;'alue
31 March 31 March =~ 31 March ' 31 March
2020 2019 . 2020 ) 2019,
£m £m . - £fm £m
Trade and other payablés 188 w1312 1,1s8 1,312
1,158 . 1,312 " 1,158 1,312

Valuation methods and assumptions

Certain liabilities have been classified and carried at amortised cost on inception in line with IFRS 9 criteria.
The carrying value of these assets are approximately equivalent to fair value due to short-term maturity.

I
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Finémcfal Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (conﬁnuéd)

' 24 Financial instruments (continued) .

Amounts recognised in profit and loss

The amount of derivative re-measurement that has been recognised through. the profit and loss account is as
follows: ‘

2020 2019

A A . - £Em £m
Opening value of derivatives - net (liability)/asset position - - (36) 11
Movemerit recognised through profit.and loss : o 4) 47
Closing value of derivatives (net liability position) ‘ 40) (36)

25 Financial risk management and impairment of financial assets
Group !

The Groups's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (predommantly from commodity
* price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk managément programme focuses on the
unpredictability of commodity price -markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. :

Risk ‘management is carried out by the Risk ' management committee, under policiés approved by the Directors
: and the Group management team.

Credit risk and impairment

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivablés from customers and from
security. deposnts and prepayments to suppliers and distributors and deposits with the Group s bank )

" The canymg amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure All the recelvables are w:th
parties’in the UK. The allowance account of trade receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the’
"Group is satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at that point the amounts considered
irrecoverable are written off against the trade receivables directly. The Group provides-for impairment losses
- based on estimated irrecoverable amounts determined by reference to specnﬁc cncumstances and the experience
of management of debtor default in the industry. :

Trade receivables are written off only after a period of time has elapsed since the final bill. Enforcement activity
continues in respect of these balances unless there is specific know circumstances that removes any value in
’ further action.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither ‘due or impaired can be assessed by reference to historical
information about counterparty default rates. Impalred recelvables mamly relate to customers from whom it is
unlikely that full payments will be received.

~
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OVO (S) Energy Servnces lelted

Notes to.the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (contmued)

25 Financial risk management and impairment of financial assets (continued)

-

Market risk- -
'Com'mo'dity price risk

Commodity risk is the exposure that the Group has to price movements in the wholesale "gas and électricity
markets. The risk is primarily that market prices for commodities will fluctuate between the time that tariffs are
set and the time at which the corresponding procurement cost is fixed; this may result in lower than expected
margins. or unprofitable sales. The Group is also exposed to- volumetric risk in the form of uncertain
consumption profiles arising from a range of factors which include weathel -economic climate -and changes in
energy consumption pattems

The Group's exposure to commodity risk is managed through the use of derivative financial mstruments The
Group does not use derlvatnves and other financial instruments for speculatwe purposes. ~
The Group measures and manages the commodlty nsk associated with the financial and non-financial
commodity contracts it is exposed to. However, only certain commodity contracts within the Group constitute
-financial instruments under IFRS 9. As a result, it is only the fair value of IFRS 9 financial instruments which
represents the exposure of the Group’s commodity price risk under IFRS 7. This is a consequence of the
.Group’s accounting policy which stipulates that commodity contracts which are designated as financial
instruments under IFRS 9 should be-accounted for on a fair value basis with changes in fair value reflected in
profit or equity. Conversely, commodlty contracts that are not designated as financial instruments under IFRS 9
will be accounted for as “own use” contracts. As fair value changes in own use contracts are not leﬂected
through profit or equity, these do not represent the IFRS 7 commodlty price risk. .

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its ﬁnanma] obllgatlons as they fall due

The Group management team uses short and IonO-term cash flow forecasts to manage liquidity risk. Forecasts
are supplemented by sensmwty analysis which is used to assess fundmg adequacy for at least a 12 month
perlod :

The biggest threat to the Group's liquidity would arise from unusually -cold weather or other factors ‘causing
customer volumes to be much higher than anticipated. This could place a strain on the Group's working capital
as payments due to supplier invoices could become due before customer collection levels could be adjusted.

The Group manages its cash resources to ensure it has sufficient funds to meet all ekp.eéted demands as they fall
due. - ‘ '
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OVO (S) Energy Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (eontinued)' _

25 Financial risk management and impairment of financial assets (continued)

Capital risk management .
Capital nsk 18 managed to ensure the Group contmues asa gomg concern and grows in a sustamable manner.

The Group maintains a consolidated financial model to monitor the development of the Group's capital
" structure, which has the ability to model varlous scenarios and sensitivities. Key outputs from this model are
regularly presented to the board. : :

The Company and Group have no borrowings from third parties, should debt be.introduced into the capital
structure in the futuie then gearing would be managed and monitored. ’

26 Reélated party transactions -

Key management personnel .
Key. management includes directors and members of the Group management team. The compensation pald or
payable to key management for employee services to the Group's subsidiaries is shown below.

31 March 31 March

2020 - 2019

. gm . £m

Salaries and other short term emplo;I/ee beneﬁts o L7 ' i

Summary of transactlons wnth parent entities »

On 15 January 2020 the company was acquited by the OVO Energy Group. As at 31 March 2020 the total
balance outstanding: due from OVO Energy lelted was £440 ,482,637 (2019: £Nil). The loan mcuned no ’
- interest charge on the capital balance S

Flom 1 April 2019 to 15 January 2020 the company was owned by SSE Plc. As at 31 March 2020, the total

balance outstanding with SSE Plc was £nil (2019: due to £968,650,969). Please see SSE plc consolidated
financial statements for fmthe1 details. .
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_Notes to thé Financial Statements for the‘Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

26 R:elated party tra‘nsactiohs (continued)

) Summary of transactlons w1th subs1dlar1es

As at 31 March 2020, the total balance outstandmg due from ovo S) Electuclty Limited was £102 793 201
(2019: due from £945,310,888). The loan incurred interest at a charge of 5.06% Whlch was a total interest cost
for the year of'£786,362.

As at 31 March 2020 the total balance outétaﬁding due to OVO (S) Gas Limited was £359,717,355 (2019 due
from £334,288,717). The loan incurred interest an charge of 5.06% which ‘was a total interest. income for the
year of£l76 ,466. o . ‘ -

. As at 31 March 2020, the total balance outstandmg due to OVO (S) Metering Limited was £18 889,445 (2019

due from £1,427 ,973). The loan incurred 1nte1est an charge of 5.06% which was a total interest cost for the year
of £5,897. .

As at 31 March 2020, the total balance outstanding due from OVO (8) Retail Telécoins Limited wés £4,809, 893
(2019: due from £2,078,474). The loan incurred interest an charge of 5.06% which was a total interest cost for

" the year of £10,112.

As at 31 Manch 2020, the total balance 'outstanding due to OVO (S) Home Services Limited was £3,677,890

. (2019: due to £6,553,592). The loan incurred interest an charge of §. 06% whlch was a total mterest income for

the year of £365, 556
As’at-31 March 2020 the total balance outstanding due to OVO (S) Energy -Solutions Limited was £5,421,773

(2019: due to £4,750,301). The loan incurred interest an charge of 5.06% which was a total interest income for
the year of £4,226.. _ : A

27 Parent and ultimate parént undertaking

The company's immediate parent is OVO Energy Ltd.

The ultimate parent is Imaglnatlon Industries Ltd. These financial statements are avallable upon request from
the regnstered office showmg in note 1.

The ultimate controlling party is Stephen Fit_zpat‘rick.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (continued) '

.28 Non édjusting eVen_ts after the financial period

CoVID-19

Our investment in technology and shared platforms has ensured a high level of connéctivity which means we are
able’to move to remote operations with minimal disruption. However, unfortunately COVID-19 has impacted
our commercial performance in 2020/21, due to some key sales channels within the business experiencing
51gmﬂcant mtelruptmn as a result of the lockdown.

As a result of COVID- 19, we have also recogmsed additional bad debt.charges in 2020/21, in accordance with
the requirements of [FRS 9, as the economic consequences of the pandemlc have mateuahsed with our -
~‘customers. .

Other post balance sheet evénts

In May 2020, the OVO Group announced a phase of 1estructu11ng to align the e‘ustmg OVO Retail busmess and
the acquired SSE businesses ‘operationally. With respect to our subsidiary OVO' (S) Metering Limited, this
involved the creation of an OVO- Group Metering division to oversee all metering activity across the OVO
Retail Group. The new Group Metering division was largely created from personnel across OVO (S) Metering
- Limited and the OVO equ1va1ent (OVO Field Force lelted) with some addmonal functions transferr ed in from
OVO (8) Energy Servnces Limited. - .

At this time, no changes have been made to align employee contracts or assets.

As part of the restructure, a'voluntary enhanced redundancy programme (VER) was initiated which has fesu'lted
in the exit of a number of staff from both the OVO and OVO (S) Metering businesses, to right-size the operation
and to operate across all OVO Retail brands. = N

In addition, through the same 'VER programme, OVO (S) Metering Limited is ceasing to undertake in-house

meter reading activity and has moved to a third party arrangement. As a result, circa 700 meter reading staff (a_
mix of permanent and contract resource) have left the business. :
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